From: Velthuis, Kirsten

To: Janne Grose; David Glasgow

Cc: Murphy, Anthony; Goodall, Laura; Nik Wheeler; Aquilina, Ron; Dean Moore
(moored@sydneyswans.com.au); Eliza Scobie; Tim Laing; Medway, Beth

Subject: FW: Royal Hall - BDAR report - Microbat survey requirements

Date: Tuesday, 3 March 2020 5:47:41 PM

Attachments: EES response - Roval Hall of Industries.pdf

Hi Janne and David,

We have recently completed further targeted microbat survey at the Royal Hall of Industries
which included anabat call detection and thermal imaging camera surveys, as per your
recommendation.

The survey did not identify any new threatened microbat species. One likely microbat was
captured on camera emerging from the RHI facade but no calls were recorded to enable positive
species identification.

In summary, the combined September 2019 and February 2020 microbat surveys identified that
the RHI provides potential (non-breeding) roosting habitat for four microbat species, including
one TS listed under the BC Act, the Large Bent-winged Bat. The RHI is not considered to provide
breeding habitat for the Large Bent-winged Bat.

Based on these findings, we propose the development and implementation of Microbat
Management Plan (MMP) for implementation pre/ during and post construction. This MMP will
include roost exclusion process and method; proposed microbat box installation in consultation
with the City of Sydney Urban Ecology Coordinator, as well as post-installation monitoring/
reporting of bat boxes.

Additionally, the BDAR will be updated accordingly, and any additional avoidance and mitigation
measures for prescribed impacts will be included where relevant.

If you could advise your agreement on the above, in time for finalisation of the reports this week,
that would be much appreciated.

Kind regards,
Kirsten Velthuis

Senior Environmental Consultant
Eco Logical Australia
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Mr David Glasgow

Planning and Assessment Group

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
GPO Box 39

SYDNEY NSW 2001

Dear Mr Glasgow
Subject: EES comments on Biodiversity Development Assessment Report for Adaptive
reuse of the Royal Hall of Industries — SSD-9726 — 1 Driver Avenue, Moore Park

Thank you for your email of 21 November 2019 requesting advice on the Biodiversity Development
Assessment Report (BDAR) for this State Significant Development (SSD).

The Environment, Energy and Science Group (EES) appreciates the Department giving it an
extension in which to provide its response and provides its recommendations and comments at
Attachment A.

If you have any queries regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact Janne Grose, Senior
Conservation Planning Officer on 02 8837 6017 or at janne.grose@environment.nsw.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

S #MV/&W /5(//2,//7

Susan Harrison

Senior Team Leader Planning
Greater Sydney Branch
Environment, Energy and Science
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Attachment A

Subject: EES comments on the Biodiversity Development Assessment Report for adaptive
reuse of the Royal Hall of Industries — SSD-9726 — 1 Driver Avenue, Moore Park

The Environment, Energy and Science Group (EES) has reviewed the Biodiversity Development
Assessment Report (BDAR) for this SSD and provides the following comments.

EES previously provided comments on the Response to Submissions Report (RTS) for this SSD
which included a Microbat Survey Report (MSR).

Microbat surveys

EES notes that no additional microbat surveys have been undertaken for the BDAR. The BDAR
uses the same survey information that was undertaken for the MSR (see BDAR, Table 16, page 33
and MSR Table 1, page 2).

The Anabat ultrasonic call detection surveys recorded one threatened microbat species, the Large
Bent-winged Bat (Miniopterus orianae oceanensis, formerly known as Eastern Bent-wing Bat
Miniopterus schreibersii oceanensis), listed as vulnerable under the Biodiversity Conservation Act
2016 (BC Act), as well as three non-threatened microbat species:

e Gould’s Wattled Bat (Chalinolobus gouldi)

e Ride's Free-tailed Bat (Ozimops ridei)

e White-striped Free-tailed Bat (Austronomus australis).

The BDAR notes the Large Bent-winged Bat, Gould’s Wattled Bat and Ride’s Free-tailed Bat have
been recorded roosting in buildings, while White-striped Free-tailed Bat is a tree-roosting species
(page 33-34 of BDAR). Due to the Anabat results, the BDAR assumes the Large Bent-winged Bat
may utilise the Royal Hall of Industries (RHI) as roosting habitat (page 33).

The BDAR also notes the potential for several other threatened (vulnerable) microbat species to be
roosting in the RHI, although they were not recorded during the survey:

Eastern Coastal Free-tailed Bat (Micronomus norfolkensis) (Table 13, page 19)

Little Bent-winged Bat (Miniopterus australis) (Table 13, page 20).

Yellow-bellied Sheathtail Bat (Saccolaimus flaviventris) (section 1.6.1, page 28)

Eastern False Pipistrelle (Falsistrellus tasmaniensis) (section 1.6.1, page 28).

Impacts on potential roosting habitat within the RHI building for these microbat species are
considered as prescribed impacts in the BDAR (section 2.1.2), but only superficially. For example,
there is no explicit consideration that the proposed modifications to the internal structure of the
building, including the removal of the potential microbat access points, will be permanent impacts,
nor is there consideration of the likely consequences of the impacts on each of these microbat
species.

Avoidance of impact is of key importance for prescribed impacts, yet no discussion has been made
of ways to avoid the loss of such habitat, as required by section 8.2 of the Biodiversity Assessment
Method (BAM); instead Table 20 of the BDAR only justifies that impacts on such habitat have been
avoided by stating that the fagade of the building will remain in place. The proponent should be
referred to DPIE’s ‘Biodiversity Assessment Method Operational Manual Stage 2’ for detailed
guidance on how to sufficiently address this part of the BAM.

Table 25 (section 2.2.5) of the BDAR proposes a number of measures to mitigate and manage

impacts, including additional microbat surveys to detect the exact location of microbat roost sites

and identify entry/exit points in the roof cavity (page 39). EES has been advised by a DPIE bat

expert that follow-up surveys to confirm use of the building could be undertaken by:

(i) further surveys with acoustic detectors targeting the potential entry/exit points to the building, for
multiple nights (2-3 nights at a minimum)
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(i) observing each entry point with a thermal camera to capture footage of bats emerging from the
building.

Surveys should be undertaken at times of year most appropriate for detection, which may be
different for each target species. For the Large Bent-winged Bat in Sydney mid-autumn is best as
numbers of this species build up from autumn through to winter. Surveys on warmer nights during
winter surveys can also be suitable. Any detections in summer of this species in artificial structures
should be followed up to assess whether the site or locality may harbour a maternity roost.

The proposed additional survey work should preferably be undertaken prior to the Department
approving the SSD, particularly as:
» the visual survey of potential microbat roosts identified five entry/exit points which are
considered likely to provide access to potential microbat roosting habitat within the RHI
(page 19)
* the BDAR indicates the results of the surveys will determine what additional mitigation
measures may be required. The mitigation measures should be identified prior to approving
the SSD and these should be part of a proactive response plan developed in advance.

If the Department approves the development before the additional surveys are undertaken, a
condition of consent needs to be included in the approval which requires the surveys to be
completed progressively in advance of the stages of demolition before any construction, noise,
vibration commences, and the details of the surveys and the results provided in a report to the
Department.

If the additional survey work determines that microbats roost, or are likely to roost, in the RHI,

Table 25 of the BDAR includes actions to install nest boxes around the development site to provide

microbats with an alternative roost location (page 40) and to close up the entry/exit points at night

after microbats have exited (page 39). EES recommends that

(a) the proponent develops a strategy and mitigation measures as to appropriate nest box
specifications for target species, appropriate locations for the nest boxes, and monitoring,
reporting and adaptive measures in consultation with the City of Sydney’s Urban Ecology
Coordinator and a fauna ecologist with specialist knowledge in nest boxes for microbats

(b) for any threatened microbat species, the consent authority requires additional biodiversity
credits be purchased and retired to offset the prescribed impacts.

Site Landscaping

The BDAR includes an action that site landscaping is to use appropriate local native species (see
pages 43 and 54), however the Masterplan which accompanies the RTS shows deciduous trees
are also proposed to be planted. If the SSD is approved, it is recommended conditions are
included in the approval to ensure local native provenance species are used from the native
vegetation community that once occurred in this locality.

Recommended conditions of consent
EES recommends the following conditions are included in the consent:
1. Landscaping at the site shall use a diversity of local native provenance trees, shrubs and
groundcover species (rather than exotic species or non-local native species) from the
relevant native vegetation community that once occurred in this locality

2. Tree planting at the site shall use advanced and established trees with a minimum plant
container pot size of 100 litres, or greater for local native tree species which are
commercially available. Other local native tree species which are not commercially
available may be sourced as juvenile sized trees or pre-grown from provenance seed.

3. Enough area/space must be provided to allow the planted trees to grow to maturity.
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4. If the additional microbat survey work determines that microbats roost, or are likely to roost,
in the RHI, the proponent shall develop and implement a strategy that includes mitigation
measures relating to clearance/capture and relocation of individuals, appropriate locations
and specifications for artificial nests for the target species, and monitoring, reporting and
other adaptive measures, in consultation with the City of Sydney’s Urban Ecology
Coordinator and a fauna ecologist with specialist knowledge in artificial nest structures for
the affected microbat species.

5. If the additional microbat survey work determines that any threatened microbat species
roost, or are likely to roost, in the RHI, a requirement that the proponent must purchase and
retire biodiversity credits to offset the prescribed impacts.

EES also recommends all measures proposed in Table 25 (section 2.2.5) of the BDAR to mitigate
and manage impacts be included as formal conditions of consent.

End of Submission
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